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TEKNON, £Y [TANTOTE MET' EMOY EL KAl [TANTA TA EMA £A EZTIN
(Ao, 15.31)
O TOpOg CUTOS CpLEOWIVETCLL
arov Euuavouid N. Mdvo,
mov £xoviag LoybioeL enl ¥oovia
YLCL VEL CIEOXTHOEL TOL CUTCOOITITCL EQPOdLOL
HEOC Qo IS YEVIRES ROl ELOLKES OMOVOES TOV,
avahaupdvel mhéov vmetBuva
) BEOY ToU OV ETALOELN O,
ouveyCoviag 1o £0Y0 TOV TPOTAMTOU,

TOV MOV Kt TOU UTEQW TOU.

SON, THOU ART EVER WITH ME AND ALL THAT 1 HAVE 15 THINE,
{Luk

15,31)

The present volume is dedicated
to Emmanouil N. Manos,
who having successfully completed
his struggling effort towards the acquisition
of the required qualifications
through his general and specialist studies,
is now in the position to sufficiently occupy
his post in our company keeping up the work
of his great-grandfather,
grandfather and father.
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[IPOAOI'OX

TO 2004, ME AQOPMH TV TEVINXOOTY ETETELG TNG, 1 E-
TOULPELT PLOLS XONUATODOTNOE TOOYOCLLLLL YLCL TV (ITORAT-
otaon Prlaviivay ®on PETafulovivay eimavey and Ty
Kovoravnivoimohn ko eE€0m0e Tov GETHG6 TOPO LITG TOv
titho «Anoxataotuéves Ewmdves Kovotavuvoumohewer.
Zto mpdyoappa exeivo elyav amoxotaotabel 33 popnreg
emdveg and vaous g IToAng, ol omoieg yoovohoyouvToy
and tov 14o peypl v tov 190 cuwva, amo tovg Zuvten-
1ég Xwpig Zivopa.

To ev hdym £pyo pdg EQeQe U8 EXQG] JE [ILCL WOy T
roTpTe, dyvoot) otoug mepwogotépove. Xrovg 80 vaolc
™ Hékne vmohoyiletan om vdoyovy mave amxd 20,000
POONTES EIRGVES, IIE LOTOPAY Hal nothhteyvin aEia, wou
OLOOWEEVTNHAY OT1) OLHOKEL CuodhVeY AaTOEVTLIROL flou
7oL dieodinxay oe enoyés avritoes. Avdueoa otovg va-
otig autovg eivan xon 0 Aylog Anpuitplog Evidmograg (ot
ouvolzla Ayvansaray), £vag oo Tovg TOELS APLEQMUEVOUS
atov Mupophit. Ze mpordroyo #riopa tou idov vaot
oteydaobnue mahwmorepa (1597-1601) 1o Motowapyeio, eva
TOMLES VIOV EXTOTE OL LETAROLES OTOV YWPO, TV EVO-
Lo} 00y avmOT ®a Ta otxodopuara. Zomtxij Bewopeital
1 TORERHOaN TV YOUVERTOQUAWY ETKEIpHOEmY g TT6-
kg, omy omoia ogelhetal 1) diACmON TOU VaoU ot PHEoT
Tou 19ou awmva.

ZHUEQC, CVAPETH 08 WIC REVIOIXY] AEWPORO Mol o
o ouvolkic, 0 voog -TeooQaTe ATOXATAOTIUEVOS, E-
00 0 £VOY SULOQEMO X0, POOVILOUEVD [IE EMPELELD s
OTOQYLRA YEOL= MEQVIEL WITUQUTIONTOS (IO TOV CVUITONi-
A0TO TEQUITLXO.

Zrov Avio Anujtolo Zvkdmootas diaadlovial eizoal
plce peTaPfuloVTIivED ELKOVES, TV OTOLWY 1) ETOLRELN 1Og
YONUATOAOTNOE TV CITORUTAOTOON, Pall (e TO TEUTAO HoL
Tt TEOOHVVITAQLC TOU Voo, To £py0 exTELEOE e EMUE-
ket evedg Tou 2005 v B opdde mov elfye wrokaTaoTioEL

g 33 gopnTEg EROVES TO TTponyoupevo £toc. To syyeipn-
Lot TV A0AATAOTAoEmY atov Ayo Anjtolo Zviomop-
TS apod 0 Tapdv Topos. Efvon agplepmpEvos o pua on-
POVTERE] ACQUTY] OTHV ETIELQNUCTIEY LOTOQIM TG OLHOYE-
VELAC PO,

[Mpozertan Yo Ty Eviasn amy etcupeic tov Eppovou-
1k N. Mdvou, netd my ohoxhijonon Tmv YEVIRGY Kol €101
#nody omovduy tov oto Aovdivo xat 1o Movayo. Exmpoow-
el TV TETART VEVLD, [IE AQETNOIC TOV MEOTATTOL TOU,
tov Nixohao E. Mdvo, o onolog Eexlvnoe ota 1895 nig a-
apahotizes epyaoies ot Oeaoahoviny. Alvoupe 1Wiaite-
01 GNUACIC OTO YEYOVOS, OLOTL avadELRVIEL TIS EVVOLES TS
ETELONILATLAS CVTOYIS ®OL TS OLAOHELNS TWY TDOCTL-
Bewdiv, ZTV OLKOVOLLAY] ETLOTIIY £EL ®OT EMAVARY E-
mpefoumbel omd epmepinés pekfteg 10 «ovVOQORO
Buddenbrooks», aupqmve jLe 10 00{o 01 01ROy EVELLRES E-
THEWQHOELS 7Ot ovove dev vmepPaivouy Ty 1ol ye-
vic. Efpaote veprgavor mov n E. N. Mdvog EIIE ouvvi-
Ot EEWIPETY ®OL CUVERILEL TV avamTuEl] g, 1000 LE TO
OIHTVO TOV ETULOEWDV oS 0TO EEWTEQIRG 600 %ot péoa
oty Eihddo.

AUTIY TV ETLYEIQNIOTIRT] AU TUVOEOULLE IE TO EQY0
atoy Ayio Anijtolo ZUAGTOQTHS, TO OO0 LOTORETHL
OTOV MALEOVTOL TOJLO.

H A IL o Owovpevinog [otowdoyng wiplog wiplog
BapBolopaios efge TV evyevi ®ohoouvi) va evhoyijoet
®otL TV mapova mpotofovkio pag. Tov euyapiotovpe %o
mht amo Pabovg napdicg. Exiong, evyaoiototpe toug e-
HLEXTOVS EQEVVITES JTOV UEAETNTOY TOV VOO, TNV LOTOQIC,
THY COYITEXTOVIRY] X0 TIS EWROVES Tov, BETOVTUS TO oot~
QUITTO EMOTNUOVLKG TACIOLO OTO eYYE(ONUA Lag.

Nuxohaog E. Mdvog



PROLOGUE

IN 2004, ON THE OCCASION of its 50th anniversary, our
company funded a programme for the restoration of
Byzantine and post-Byzantine icons from Constantinople
and published a book on the subject, entitled «Restored
Icons of Constantinople». As part of this programme,
Restorers Without Frontiers restored 33 portable icons
from churches in the City, dating from the 14th to the 19th
centuries.

This task brought us into contact with a reality
unknown to most people. It is estimated that in the 80
churches of the City, there are over 20,000 portable icons
of historical and artistic value, which have been accumulat-
ed over centuries of liturgical life and have survived par-
lous times. One of these churches is that of Saint
Demetrios Xyloportas (in Ayvansaray), one of three dedi-
cated to the myrrh-yielder. An earlier building of the same
church formerly housed the Patriarchate (1597-1601)
though, since then, there have been many changes to the
site, the parish organization and the buildings. The contri-
bution of the furriers of the City was vital and it is to them
we owe the rescue of the church in the mid-19th century.

Recently restored, within a beautiful garden tended by
loving hands, the church stands today between a central
arterial road and a none too prosperous neighbourhood,
unnoticed by anyone ignorant of its presence.

21 post-Byzantine icons survive in Saint Demetrios
Xyloporta, and our company has funded their restoration,
together with the iconostas and icon-stands of the church.
The work was carried out in 2005 by the same team which
restored the 33 portable icons in the previous year. The
present volume is concerned with the restoration operation
in Saint Demetrios Xyloportas and is dedicated to a signif-
icant event in the history of our family business: we have
been joined by Emmanouil N. Manos, on the completion

of his general and specialist studies in London and Munich.
He represents the fourth generation, starting with his
great-grandfather, Nikolaos E. Manos, who began dealing
in insurance in Thessaloniki in 1895. We attach especial
importance to the fact, because it highlights the concepts
of business durability and continuity of effort. Economic
science has repeatedly confirmed the «Buddenbrooks syn-
drome» whereby family businesses generally do not last
more than three generations. We are proud that the E. N.
Manos Company is proving an exception to this and is con-
tinuing to develop its network of interests both in Greece
and abroad.

We have linked this new turn in our business life with
the work in Saint Demetrios Xyloportas, which is described
in the present volume.

His All-Holiness, Ecumenical Patriarch Vartholomaios,
was kind enough to give his blessing to this initiative of
ours and we thank him again whole-heartedly. We would
also like to thank the scholars who studied the church, its
history, architecture and icons, and put our efforts into
proper scientific context.

Nikolaos E. Manos



ZHMEIQMA TQN ZYNTHPHTGN

ITOAAA XPONIA eyav nepdoel and Ty TOOTY Pov Ei-
THEYN) KOl 1) GY) TOU TEPTAOV |LE Tat Oy edOV coyctind otol-
yelo OLanOoUNaNS TUEEUEVE EVIVTMUEYT) oToV vou pou. H
ATUOOEALON EVOS TETCACIOUEVOL EGOTEQIXOU [E MEQITE-
HVEL LLCL ETOLUGDOC EMLYOVTMUEVH SVAGYAUITTH KOL ELHO-
VEC TEQAOTLOV OLOOTACEWMY, (1€ THOTEIVIOOUEVE PATIL VL
O #OITOUY, AEPOVOL HAQTURES TS EQHRMONG, fTav autd
MOV AELTOVQYNOCY F ®IVITOC Yiet Vit SEXIVI{OOUIE TOV 1=
MOUOOPO CymVeL dLACMANS TWY REWNAIOY TOU 1EQOT Vo
Ayiov Anuntolov g ZvAGmopToS.

AgPovo 100 TS «puUailngy WToplog, 0 VIos autos
#ouPokd PEon TOU PVIUES ®OL PLODTURIES OF £VaY TETOLO
Babpd, dmov vopllelg mwg xdbe Tou avuxelpevo eival
POETLOPEVO PE lia comiatevty) alodnon tepdtrag. Mua te-
QOTHTEL TOU DEV EYEL OYEDN [E TN OO, TV TehaLGTI T,
T yonfon 1 my vk oo tov avizelnevow. "Eyel va nd-
VEL E TNV OY£01) TOU LLE TOV «TOMO», (UTO TTOU AELE «TOMO
APLAGURTOS», TO 0TTolo otV 0pHGd0EN Tapddoon hettoup-
vel wg gopéag g Xdprog xal «Xwed 1ol Ayomprtous.
‘Ohn avmj 1 atofinon mov ge mepuwvrkhmvel, o wabumo-
paiher war oe wafnhovel, xabog eloéo ecul oTOoV A0
ANTELO, AELTOLRYEL TOVTORDOVE 0 POYAGS EQUATHOLOZ
kA RO ThOROS UvaoTokijs. Ny ot TeplaTmon), elval
guvénrol o Befog Oijkog ®at 0 eVBOVOLATNGS TOU LS ROTE-
hapey, otav Eexvijoape e TV WEN TG OUVTHENONS TOU
TEWTAOU 0TV ®OUPEvTa pag pe tov Nizo Mdvo. Opog to
déog, n evbivy amévavt oty [otopia ®ou 10 amQosuéTon-
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TO TOV EYYEIOHaTOS, »afHdTL o8 pio TEToln eQyaoia ivo
adivato va mpoiimokoyioeis 1o péyebog, poag endfiokhoy é-
VOV amoTenTizG 0pbokoyiond, ZTov TEMHG Olwg amoko-
YLORO TOUTAVEVCTE 0 0HOZ-AOYLIONOS %ol ETOL TOQUOion-
WE, YioL pice cropn gopd, vo Wrovpe ot gomid. Mo pe
ot ToL AdyLen YIaTE TO VL 0QYaVIDOELS JC OO OXTO -
Bodmmy e1dAV-oUVTENTEY ONG OLUPOPETIRES YWPES,
qrioZevaviag toug omyv Kovotavovotmohn, xon vo exte-
heoeig Eva TETolo ovvbeto, evalobnto xou emimovo £pvo
eiva moaypamnd amiotevta dvoroko. Emumhéoy, gyeig va
AVILPETOIIOEIS 0LOVS CUTOUS TOVS «rahoBelntddes», oL o-
OO TAVTOL EPGOVICOVTOL EX TV VOTEQWY O GUTES TIS TE-
OUTTOOELS 1S «TTUOUTOEYAILEVOL» ReLl, AoV EEaopaiioovy
YU cutong Evay pOko, ®AVOUY TO £0Y0 (O Lo OUGHOLO,
votepdfovha 1 arhds amepioxrema,

Ou epyaoieg Sexivnoav ong aoyéc Maptiov 2005 pe
TEOOTTLAY TEQIMMS Tovg ToV ORTMPELe ToU (dlov EToug
EVOYEL TG TTaVIYUNS Tou aryiov. To Epyo watnyopromoni-
Brre o TEELS OpadES: (o) EwvovooTdot, (f) mpooruvTd-
o %ot (y) poontés eioves. H opndda dovhepe 1 o e-
MTOTOV, PECH GTOV Vo, je cuvbhixes Yiyovg oty aoyi
ALl ATOTVIHTLANS LEOTIS TO HohonraioL, ®oiL 1) VITOAOLITY) OTO
£0YULOTIOIO TEXINOLOVOVTUS TIS EQYOO(ES KUL TAOUHROIOV-
Bavrag fripa-pripa Ty eEEME] Tous.

To oo medPphnpa mov avupetwnioape dev 1jtay 10
TEYVIAO. AGTL EYOVIOG e TEQAaTI TElpa auveonong €€

ohorijpov emd 110N vany oty Kovotovtivoimohn now ta



RESTORERS’ NOTE

MANY YEARS had passed since my first visit and the fac-
ing of the iconostas, with its almost ancient decorative fea-
tures, remained imprinted in my mind. The atmosphere of
an aged interior with skilful but unstable gilded carvings in
wood and icons of enormous dimensions, darkened eyes
looking at you, hushed witnesses to the desolation, was
what acted as the motivation for us to make the effort to
save the treasures of the Church of Saint Demetrios
Xyloportas (of the Wooden Door).

A relic of «Romans» history, this church bears within it
memories and testimony to such an extent that you think
that every object is charged with an unbelievable sense of
the sacred. A sanctity that has no relation to the shape, the
age, the use or the material value of the object. It has to do
with its relationship with the «place of hallowing», which in
Orthodox tradition functions as a conduit for Grace and
which «contains Him Who cannot be contained». This
whole feeling which envelops, affects and chastens you as

vou enter Saint Demetrios’ also works as

both a catalyst
and a brake. In the first instance, it is not difficult to under-
stand the divine zeal and enthusiasm which seized us, in a
conversation we had with Nikos Manos, when we began the
idea of restoring the iconostas. But the awe, the sense of
responsibility towards history, the immeasurability of the
undertaking, as well as the fact that it is impossible to
assess the magnitude of such a task, made us chary. In the
end, however, good sense prevailed, and so we decided,

once again, to take the bull by the horns. I use this lan-
guage because organizing a team of eight people, specialist
restorers from different countries, finding accommodation
for them in Constantinople and completing such a com-
plex, delicate and painstaking task really is incredibly diffi-
cult. Besides, you have to deal with all those well-wishers
who, in cases like this, always turn up after the event and,
as «hangers-on», find themselves a role and make the
whole thing more difficult, either deliberately or simply
through their vacuity.

Work began at the beginning of March, 2005, the inten-
tion being to complete the job in October of the same year,
in time for the saint’s feast. The task was broken down into
three groups: a) the iconostas; b) the icon-stands; c) the
portable icons. Half the team worked on location in the
church, in freezing cold at the beginning and stifling heat
in the summer, while the rest were in the workshop, collat-
ing the tasks and following their progress step by step.

The basic problem we faced was not technical. When
you have a fair amount of experience from restoring, in all,
seven churches in Constantinople and the surrounding
area alone, as well as thousands of objects on the Holy
Mountain, in the rest of Greece and Jerusalem, too, it is
unlikely that you will come across insoluble problems.
What always gives grounds for reflection is the «moral»
aspect of the restoration of any particular work. The cen-
tral portion of the iconostas, for example, which is also the
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TEQLE %ol YMddmv dhhov xeymiioy oe Ayio ‘Opos, houmi
Ehhada won lepoodiuopa eivar anBavo va ovvovtioeis d-
huto mpophnua. Mopdho autd, exeivo mov amotehel mdvro
AVTAETIEVO IOCUTEQNS TEQITHEYMS Eiva 1) «nBurt]» ™S a-
TORATACTOONS TOL TUYKEXOLLEVOD £pyou. D mopdderya,
TO KEVIOLXO TLIUCL TOV TEUTAOV, OV UTOTELEL ML TO GO-
FOULGTEQO TG T PEAY TOU Yooy, QEQEL ENTA TOVAGAIOTOV
OLPOPETINES (PAOELS TOUACIOTERMV ETEPPGOENMV. ATO (-
TéC, dhhe avagépovrar om) dopr) Tov ol dihes oy diand-
TN, ZTNY TOWTT TEQITTOION KATO XOUPLATICL COVTIACLTCL-
orafnuay arl Ao VEOTERNS RATUOREVNS 1], CHOT), OhO-
#hnoo THOTe TEOOTEBNHAY, 0w OTV TEQITTWa g K-
patag TIoANG #ew Tou ®evtorod dalopatog mave amd To
Amdexdopto. Zto onpuelo autd, 1) TEoothjx EVes vmepuE-
YEHOUS CETOUATOS OTLS GOYES TOV ELXOTTOU Caivee chhoim-
ot 6k My alolnmzn eidva Tov Tépmhov. H emépfoon av-
T £YIVE TEOPAVEHS COAOVBOVTAS Tr) «UOdO» TNE ETOYNS,
F0OEIg VO UIAQYEL HATOLL CVOYHCLGTITTO 1] TOUKTIRGS hO-
YOG, GITg 0TV TEQITTNOT TOU UPLOTEQOU RAITOUS, GITOU 0-
Lorknon 1 ®oTeorevy) anotehel £pyo g (dLag ETOYNG e
To a€topa. Edo opmg elval pgaves 6T IQogrpe 1) avii-
Yy ahhoeyic evog 1O ROTESTOOUIEVOL TRTIATOS.

2TH QAo T AOWTOV TROEXUPE TO dTANpL: amahAdo-
GOVILE TO TEUTAO OTG TO VEGTEQD %Ol CROAAITONTO CETW-
JiCt, IOV JLE TOV GYRO KL THY ROXOTEY VI TOU EMOHLGLEL TO
hemtenihento opoTovpYNIe TOV dEraTou Efdopov aidva,
£40VTOES (05 TTOYO TNV TAON avddeidi] Tou, 1j To diempot-
pes TTpog Mimn Tov aoyaohGymy #ol 10TOQIROY TELYNS -
TOPUOLOTNZE 1) DOTHONOT OAWY TV EMTOOOHETWY dojLL-
7 atoryelov. O hiyog eival 6TL aroTeAoUY TAEOV T
TOU CUVOAOU THS LOTORIOS TOU VOoU XOL 0° CUTES TIG TEQL-
TTWOELS 1) TROOBYKN 1] 1) A@OipE o OTOLLEIWY TEETEL vt Yi-
vovTe [LE e #et TOTEQO outd TORY PLEYRY) TEQITAEN).
ARG, amo mhevpds exrhnoohoyixic, To oToeln avTd

T OO TOMAES QOPES OMEQIOAENT ANUAEPOVIE, TEQV

ams «{Vip TS LOTORLS TOV ¥MEOV, CTOTEAOUY amoTumm-
poree TG dOAoNC ®oil TG EVOERELLS TG TOMKIG AUTEUTL-
S ROWOTITOG, 1] 0ol exqodleTan péco amd m didbeon
“EVIPEMONOt» TOU LEpoT grnvopatos. H éxgoaon g
dudBeong auTiig E0vaL O ONUOVTIXY TEMKA Qo TV ool
“ormaj wdve oe aobnmxd Dnmijpato, 2ofon woTaSunvel
T AOTREVTLHY %KoL AEITOUQYIXY] DIGOTCLON TWV VAoY, TOU
duapopetird vidpyet wivouvog va BempnBolv amhag woto-
owd pvnueie, Tlapdho autd, exmovifnxe edug pehém
alobnmaig, OoTE pE yowpan] TAEovV exEuBoon 1) evri-
TWOY] TS VEOTEQNS TROOHHIS Vi VITOYWOTOEL EVAVTL TOU
UTOXEIIEVOU THHHATOZ KOl 0 GYHOS TG VO UV CTOTEAEL E-
mpdpuvon oty olvoi ot Wwoepoic: T TEWThoL.

Te 6,1 aqood 10 axéhog g dexdopnang, onkad g
FOOUOTIANS EMEAVELNS TV oYy, eDM 1) TaxT oy
mo guvBeT). Qg dEovag yoNoomonjb1e 1o ORETTIXG, O-
TL OL ELLOVES %Ol TCL ELUALOL DEV E1VOLL QTAS OO TL-
“d, OTOUKETR TOV YdpOoV, chhd PETapEQouy Eva tjvupa di-
daynig, ramiymons meog Tovg motovs. To wjvepe outo o-
MOTEAEL TO OUVEXRTIXO OTOL(E(D TS ACTQEVTIXIG HOLVOTY-
tag, #ofoT ahel Tovg MOTOUg O EmROVOVIO piE Tov O-
0 woL oe xowvovio petaEl tove. To 6ho £ovo pag odnyin-
HE OO CIUTO TO TUOUMGVE THETTIHO, TV WIOXATACTITN
TOU «pnViRaTog». To «pijvupos auto Tig TEQICOOTEQES o=
OEC 1TOV ROTOYOVICOREVO HATO) 06 OTRMUCTE. TROVIS
wetl fpopuuds #oi ahotmpévo ard mhijflog ahkemdiinhmy e-
MOTEWOEWY oo OEEWDMPUEVE PEQVIXLEL ROl GTEYVES €L~
yoopatooes. H dwdmaoic howmov ovviionans ftav -
daitepa auvBeT), ®obag #dabe gdon pereninxe ywolotd
ACPBAVOVTOS UTGYN TGVTEL XOITHOLL #OTd TQOTEQOULGTITN
LELTOUO YIRS, LOTOOLLOTITOS Kol OB TLHg.

. IModhog TTokithg



oldest part of the church furnishings, has suffered at least

seven different interventions in the past. Some of these had
to do with its structure and others with its decoration. In
the first instance, some pieces were simply replaced by
other, newer ones, or whole portions were added, as in the
case of the Royal Doors and the central frieze above the
icons of the Twelve Feasts. At this point, the addition of an
outsize pediment at the beginning of the twentieth century
changed the whole aesthetic picture of the iconostas. This
intervention no doubt occurred in accordance with the
«fashion» of the time, though there was no need or practi-
cal reason for it, any more than in the case of the left nave,
where the whole structure is a product of the same time as
the pediment. In this case, however, there was clearly a
need to change a segment which had already been dam-
aged.

So, in this phase, we were faced with the following
dilemma: do we relieve the iconostas of its more recent and
tasteless pediment, since its very bulk overshadows and
spoils the delicate 17th century masterpiece, with an aim at
completely restoring it, or should we keep it? To the cha-
grin of the archeologists and art historians, it was decided
to retain all the added structural features, the reason being
that they now form part of the whole history of the church
and in such cases, the addition or removal of features
should be undertaken with respect and after much thought.
Besides, from an ecclesiological point of view, these fea-
tures, which we sometimes remove without due considera-
tion, are actually traces of the history of the buildings and,
moreover, are a mark of the activity and devotion of the
local church community, which thus expressed its willing-
ness to «beautify» its place of worship. The expression of
this willingness is in the end more important than any crit-
ical assessment of the aesthetics, since it highlights the

devotional and liturgical dimension of churches, which
would otherwise run the risk of being considered simply
historical monuments. Having said this, a special study was
made so that, by the use of colour, the dominant impres-
sion of the modern addition was reduced as regards the
rest of that part of the iconostas and its bulk no longer
loomed large in the whole aesthetic balance.

As regards the decoration aspect, i.e. the painted sur-
faces of the works, the tactic here was more comprehen-
sive. The central criterion was the conviction that icons and
treasures are not simply decorative features in any place,
but actually transmit a message to the faithful in terms of
teaching and instruction. This message is the bonding
agent of the church community, since it calls upon the
faithful to communicate with God and to be in communion
with each other. Our whole task was driven by this ration-
ale: the restoration of the «message». Very often, this
«message» was buried deep under layers of dust and dirt
and was altered by successive layers of oxidized varnish
and clumsy touching up. The conservation process, there-
fore, was particularly comprehensive, since each phase was
studied separately, taking into consideration liturgical, his-
torical and aesthetic criteria, in that order of priority.

Fr. Pavlos Politis
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THE CHURCH OF ST. DEMETRIOS XYLOPORTAS,
ALSO KNOWN AS «KANAVIS»

by Sotirios Varnalidis
Professor Emeritus of the Aristodle University of Thessaloniki

ANYONE GOING for a stroll along the streets and the
paths within the Byzantine walls of Constantinople will
come across churches of the Byzantine and the post-
Byzantine era dotted here and there. It is well known that
the majority of the churches of the Byzantine period were
either transformed into mosques following the capture of
Constantinople or were destroyed. Others, such as St.
Sofia (Holy Wisdom), St. Irene’s and the main church of
the Monastery of Hora, have, after many vicissitudes,
become museums or cultural sites, while others were aban-
doned or fell into ruin, leaving only very few, such as Our
Lady Mougoulotissa or Moukh-liotissa (XIIT century), St.
George Kiparissas, St. Demetrios Kanavis, The Mother of
God of Vlahernai, Zoodhohos Piyi (Valoukli) and so on, as
churches in the possession of the Orthodox. Naturally,
most of the churches which remained for the Orthodox
faithful in Constantinople suffered severe damage from
time to time, either from earthquakes, fires or other caus-
es. Because of this, and with the passage of time, the need
frequently arose to renovate and improve them. During
the Ottoman period, despite the great difficulties and the
economic burden that the Orthodox Greeks had to shoul-
der, churches were renovated in many arcas of
Constantinople and in those Ottoman territories with
Christian populations, while, more rarely, new churches
were built on the ruins of older onesl. It is both commend-
able and moving that in most of these churches, especially
those of the post-Byzantine era, the bloodless sacrifice is
still offered on the altar at regular intervals, even in those
situated in remote areas of Constantinople where
Orthodox numbers have dropped dramatically (in some
areas, Orthodox inhabitants number less than five). This

liturgical activity is the result of the tireless efforts of the
Ecumenical Patriarchate and its Primate, Patriarch
Vartholomaios. One of these churches is that of St. Deme-
trios Xyloportas, also known as Kananos or Kanavos or
Kanavis.

Xyloporta lies on the edge of the fifth hill of the
Eptalofos of Constantinople, on the Keratio side, near the
historical Fanari. The church of St. Demetrios is situated
near that of St. John the Baptist (today a dependency of
Sinai) and in the area known during the Byzantine period
as «the Hunters», or else in the ancient area of Xyla
(today’s Ayvansaray)?. Patriarch of Constantinople Kon-
stantios 1 (1830-1834) provides the following interesting
information regarding the name Xyloporta, which was
given to the area and the church of St. Demetrios: «It was
thus named for the wall onto the street that encloseth the
broad courtyard of this ancient church, and the Christian
residences opposite it and the road in the middle thereof
were closed off cach night by the door-keeper of this
church with two mighty gates, one standing at one end of
the street and the other at the other, both known as Yima-
kapousou. These ancient and off-repaired gates were
burned in 1812 and, through the indifference of the war-
dens, no others were set in their place»?.

The church of St. Demetrios, which as a building went
through several historical stages during the Byzantine and
the post-Byzantine era* and which at some point had been
a women’s monastery®, reflects some distinctive features
from its long history. It was temporarily a patriarchal
church for about three years, from 1597 to 1599, before the
Patriarchate settled in St. George's, in today’s Fanari.

After the fall of Constantinople. the Patriarchate was
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forced to abandon the church of St. Sofia, its centuries-old
home, and, because of the circumstances of the time, to
move from one church to another, from one area to anoth-
er, but always within the Byzantine walls of the Queen of
Cities. Thus, it moved from the church of St. Sofia® and
was housed in that of the Holy Apostles (1453-1455), Our
Lady Pammakaristos (1455-1587), the Mother of God
Paramythia, Vlach-serai (1587-1597), St. Demetrios Kanavis
(1597-1599), finally settling in St. George’s in the Fanari
from the end of 1599 onwards, a church which had also
been a women's monastery up to that time. M. Gedeon
rightly points out that: «Being transferred from one church
to another, the patriarchal residence always bore the glori-
ous prestige it had been clad in for centuries»’.

There is no direct, specific information on the date of
construction of the first church of St. Demetrios. It is, how-
ever, highly probable that it was built, with a dome, before
the 13th century and that its interior was decorated with
mosaics. According to tradition, the church acquired the
name «St. Demetrios Kanavos» or «Kanavis» at the begin-
ning of the 13th century, in memory of a Byzantine noble
named Nikolaos Kanavos, who lived in the area. Patriarch
Konstantios I has this to say: «Concerning the name of
Saint Demetrios Kanavis, we deem that cither the forefa-
thers or parents of this Nikolaos Kanavos, who was briefly
appointed emperor by the people in the revolt and turmoil
of 1304 [1204], since they lived hard by this church and had
contributed to its reconstruction or repair and being
desirous of preserving their memory, named it after their
surname, Kanavon or Kanavos, but time and want of learn-
ing have corrupted the true name, altering it to
Kanavou»®, A. Papadopoulos Keramefs, however, puts
forward another version of the naming of the church: «in
the Paterakis inventory of 1604, it is referred to as
Kananos. Later, by false etymology, it became Kanavos,
around which the imagination of certain learned men wove
myths relating to the Byzantine family of the Kanavon or
Kanavos»?, According to historical sources, Nikolaos,
whom Skarlatos Vyzandios cites as a patrician, was pro-
claimed emperor by the mob on the 25th of January 1204
when the rebellion against the emperors Isaak II and
Alexios 1V occurred. He lasted only a few days and was
removed almost immediately by Alexios Doukas and
thrown to prison!C.

However that may be, the church of St. Demetrios
Xyloportas is cited officially for the first time in a
Patriarchal document in November 1334!1. According to
this extant document, the church of St. Demetrios seems to
have been left to decay, and, at the behest of Patriarch
Isaias (1323-1334) was ceded to one George Pepagome-

nos, who was a confidant of Emperor Andronikos III
Paleologos, by the sacristan Deacon of the Patriarchate,
Kalos Trikanas. The document reports that Pepagomenos,
who lived close to the church and was moved by divine zeal,
requested that the church and adjacent buildings be grant-
ed to him on condition that he would renovate them and
take care to ensure that services would again take place:
«assiduously ensuring that, above all else, due hymnody
and worship were to be performed, as well as the lighting
of the lamps as it behoves». The church was ceded not only
to him but to his household and heirs as well, while he had
the right to retain a priest, on the approval of the Patriarch.
In addition, both the church and the priest, whose remu-
neration would be met from the income of the church,
were to be under the supervision of the Ecumenical
Patriarchate. It seems that Pepagomenos did indeed reno-
vate the church which began to function again and contin-
ued to do so even after the fall. Describing the defence of
Constantinople in his «Chronicle», only days before its
capture by the Ottomans, the historian of the fall, Georgios
(S)Frantzis, relates that Cardinal Isidoros of Russial2 «was
told to hold it from the ward of Kynigesios to that of St.
Demetrios»!3. In his monumental work «Constantino-
ple»!4, Skarlatos Vyzandios relates that Frantzis here
means the church of St. Demetrios Kanavis.

Although many churches were destroyed when
Constantinople fell, St. Demetrios’ was not damaged at all.
In his study «The Fall of Constantinople, 1453»13 the emi-
nent historian Sir Stephen Runciman states that in the
cighteenth century, only three of the churches that existed
before the fall remained in the hands of Christians, St.
George Kiparission and St. Demetrios Kanavis, the former
being afterwards destroyed by an earthquake and the latter
by a fire (the third was Our Lady of the Mongols).

In 1593, the Russian Trifon Karabeinikov was sent to
the East by the tsar of Russia, Fédor Ivanovich, to offer
financial assistance to the Orthodox Patriarchates of the
region. Karabeinikov, who remained in Constantinople
from May to September of that year, drew up a list of the
churches which existed in various areas of Constantinople
with the aim of offering them financial assistance!.
According to Papadopoulos Keramefs, St. Demetrios’
must have been among the churches of Constantinople
that received the financial support of Trifon, even though
it was not included in the inventory!7. In his commentary
on Papadopoulos Keramefs, however, X.A. Sideridis
notes: «We believe that the Monastery of Saint Demetrios,
which Karabeinikov places at the Balata gate, is in fact the
one which Paterakis locates at Xylomasyidon [in the
Tahta-minare neighbourhood] rather than the church of
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To 1597 o vadg tov Ayiov Anpntpiov mepvad vmé Ty ®o-
toy tov Hatpudoyov AleEavdpelas Mehetiov tou nyda,
o0 onoiog ™V meplodo exelv mpoorhnbels and v Exnin-
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0oL VAR VO OTTOXTHOEL cUTl, UOTEQC oT0 TIS TEQLTETELES
sou efye, povipo Tarpuogyxd Otxo, xartafdhiler peydheg
mooomndbeles yio Ty eEedipeon xarahhijhou vaot kol G-
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mov Tehrd to emTuyydvell®, Tnv emelyovoa avdyxsn yuo
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Tog o emotolj tov moog tov Kviely me Pwoiag Baoi-
heto, Dnriveag ar’ autdy auyygedves war owmovopxy for-
Bewa: «..pépvnoo xal ol», yodgel, «zpdnote Kviéy,...
yetoa ponbeiag 0pEEaL. Olte mutplopyeloy eLmOQOIVINS,
olte Zylov popov Exovras, xal vayralopévous mokholg
yoVRaoLY Zyopdlety 16 divaoBor elvan xal héyeaBar yot-
otavol»20, Ty duowoky owovopxl ®UTdoTao), oty o-
moite evgiozeto 1 Exxdnaio won 1o Tévog ward my emoy
EXEIVY], HOW THY CyOVIC TOV VoL HOEL Olxnua RoTdhhnho yio
IMatplapyeio, diertpaymdel o Mekénog o Inyds wal oe
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diheg emoTtohéc Tov mpog dagpdpovs Wymiovs Tapaiki-
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tolapyla tov (Amoluog 1598-1601). Ildvrwe, exl mg ma-
tolpyiag Tov MarBatov B 1o IMatpiopye(o peTanopioe o-
76 TOV AYLo ANITOLO %atl EYROTOOTABIHE 0pLOTINRG ThEOV
oto davdolo, oty mohud YOVELRELD LoV ®al OToV Vo
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Zwvaiovn, avagepopevog tov Amplho tov 1852 oty eyra-
taotean Tov Hoarpwepyeiov otov Ayio Anprpo tov Ka-
vapn, yodgel meoi avtol zow e eBig: «O vadg odtog Ay
Zoyciog PeTd Tpoulhov, #al Zowbev ®obloTopLopEVOS dd
pwogiov Zxwy did otoiv xai Grdvopov, ¢ 0f & Nodg
imroxev dveynyeopévos. "Evéveto &', b5 yvootov, petd
v &gaipeay t7g Happaxapioton, diud Tvag yodvous ol



Saint Demetrios, which is also called Kanavos and which
may have been recorded by Paterakis as Kananos, instead
of Kanavos, and which is a long way from the Balata
gate»l8.

In 1597, the church of St. Demetrios passed into the care
of the Patriarch of Alexandria, Meletios Pigas, who had
been invited to the city by the Church of Constantinople to
take temporary control of the Ecumenical Patriarchate,
since the throne was vacant following the death of
Patriarch Gavriil I (1596). Given the difficult financial con-
ditions for the Church of Constantinople at that time, as
well as the urgent need to acquire a permanent home for
the Patriarchate after all its trials and tribulations, Pigas
exerted himself to find a suitable church and other build-
ings to house the Patriarchate, and eventually managed to
do so!”. The urgent need to acquire a Patriarchal seat was
mentioned by Meletios in a letter to Knyaz Vasilii of
Russia. in which he also asks for financial assistance: «Do
thou, too, remember, mighty Prince, to stretch forth a
helping hand. Without patriarchal monies, without the
holy myrrh, we are obliged to expend large amounts that
we may both be, and be called, Christians»2%. In other let-
ters to highly-placed correspondents, Meletios Pigas
bemoans the hardships faced by the Church and the Greek
nation at this time, as well as his difficulties in finding a
suitable home for the Patriarchate?!,

Meletios finally managed to purchase two monasteries:
St. Demetrios Kanavis and Our Lady Balinos in Xyloporta,
both of which were apparently being auctioned on account
of debts?2, Meletios Pigas himself says in his letter of
August 6, 1597, written in Constantinople to Metropolitan
Efthymios of Hungro-Wallachia: «We make it known to
Your Holiness that two monasteries have been sold in
Constantinople, Demetrios the Great and Our Lady
Balinos in Xyloporta. We ourselves did buy them, that they
might not pass into the hands of the impious, but now we
must pay the silver»23, According to the deacon, Paul, who
was with the Patriarch of Antioch in Constantinople from
October 20, 1652, to January 7, 1653, the church of St.
Demetrios was a «passing fair and great» building24. After
repairs were carried out to the church and to some other
buildings within the courtyard and around the church, St.
Demetrios’ was ready to house the Patriarchate of
Constantinople and Meletios Pigas himself. This can be
inferred from a letter from Meletios (no. 235) to Metropo-
litan Dionysios of Irakleia, probably written in December
1598: «Thou knowest how sweet it were for me to die, hav-
ing laboured for the church to lay the foundations of the
patriarchate and to see installed a worthy patriarch. By
God’s grace, we have succeeded in achieving the first of

these goals, but in the second we have failed most lamen-
tably»25. Ar. Pasadaios, however, writes that the offices of
the Patriarchate «had been established at the Monastery of
the Fore-runner»2°. It would seem, then, that the patriar-
chal church of St. Demetrios played host to both the locum
tenens of the Ecumenical Throne, Meletios Pigas, (from
the middle of 1597) and also Patriarch Matthaios II of
Constantinople (during his second term (April 1598-1601).
In any case, during the reign of Matthaios II, the
Patriarchate moved from St. Demetrios’ and settled once
and for all at the Fanari, the former women’s monastery,
and the church of St. George. where it remains to this day.
In April 1852, Patriarch Konstantios [ of Constantinople,
with reference to the accommodation of the Patriarchate
in the church of St. Demetrios, has this to say: «This church
was most ancient, with a dome and decorated on the inte-
rior with mosaics. It had a lower storey on which the church
was built. As is well known, after the removal of the icon of
[Our] Most Blessed [Lady], for certain years it became the
seat of the Patriarchate, since it was a very old church and
also because the locum tenens of the Ecumenical Throne,
the noble Patriarch of Alexandria, Meletios Pigas, dwelt
for two years, from 1596-97, in the cells thereof»27. There
must be a mistake in the dates given here by Patriarch
Konstantios. Pigas must have lived there from the middle
of 1597 rather than 1596, as can be deduced from the dates
of his own letters. Patriarch Konstantios goes on to say:
«For when leremias returned from his long tour, he found
the Patriarchate in the ancient church of Saint Demetrios,
called Kanavos or Kanavon and near Xyloporta, with its
dome and its mosaics, still intact»2. Of course, as
Metropolitan Yermanos of Sardeis correctly points out,
leremias could hardly have seen the church of Saint
Demetrios as Patriarchate since he died at the end of 1595.
No doubt he in fact stayed on the premises of the tempo-
rary Patriarchate at Vlach-serai, where there was the
Church of the Most Holy Mother of God Paramythia
(1587-1597)%.

Finally, after great efforts on the part of Patriarch Me-
letios Pigas of Alexandria, who was thinking of building a
new Patriarchate, if only he could gain financial support
from the princes of the Trans-Danubian countries3, the
best site and building for the final establishment of the
Patriarchate were found. As has already been mentioned,
it was the former women’s monastery of Saint George, to
which the Patriarchate was transferred at the end of 159931
and in which it remains to this day. Important information
is also provided by Patriarch Konstantios I concerning the
icon of Our Lady Pammakaristos, which was transferred,
with other treasures and relics, from the Patriarchal Church
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IMatplapyeioy, og Nadg apyoios, eig O€ td mepl alrov Ke-
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el oL TEAT) Tow 1595, Mdahiov Bo diépeve oto ©mijpLo tou
mpoowpwvol eniong [Matowepyeiov oro Bhay-oepdioyv, o-
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aqpaipefévrog Naod 17g depvijotou Tlappaxapiotov, tov
105 ayiov Anpntolov T7 enmxwhoeL TaTy 17 LEoZ emevgtjpn-
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5 QAIVETOL VTG TNV COyXY EEWMTEQLAY QOYLTEXTOVIX] TOU
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of Our Lady Pammakaristos, where the Patriarchate had
been from 1455 till 1587, first to Vlach-Serai and thence to
the Patriarchal Church of Saint Demetrios, where it
remained even after the transfer of the Patriarchate to
Diplofanarion (today’s Fanari). The holy relics of Saints
Efthymia, Solomoni and Theofanis, part of the column to
which Our Lord Jesus Christ was tied and scourged, the
mosaic icon of Saint John the Fore-runner and the lavish
pulpit had also been taken to Saint Demetrios32, The pre-
cious icon of Our Lady was kept there until 1614, when
Patriarch Timotheos (1612-1620), having enlarged the
church of Saint George, transferred the icon and other
holy treasures there. They were all placed at a central posi-
tion in the right nave, where they remain to this day33.
Patriarch Konstantios I also refers elsewhere to the trans-
fer to Saint Demetrios’ of the treasures preserved after the
seizure and demolition of the Monastery of the Pamma-
karistos (today’s Fethiec mosque). The scholarly Patriarch
writes: «Undoubtedly they welcomed this holy invocation
to preserve the memory of the lost church of the ever-
memorable Pammakaristos by placing and preserving in
the church of Saint Demetrios the Venerable Icon of the
Pammakaristos, together with other treasures. After
Patriarch Timotheos had extended and widened the afore-
mentioned very narrow church of Saint George in 1614...
they applauded him also, according to the verse inscription
of the invocation to the Virgin Mother Our Lady the
Pammakaristos, for transferring her Holy Likeness from
the church of Saint Demetrios and placing it in this
Patriarchal Church, where it is venerated with great rever-
ence to this day»34.

The church of Saint Demetrios Kanavis is referred to as
a parish church at various periods after 1600, such as, for
example (a) in Antonios Paterakis’ inventory of 1604: 6.
Saint Demetrios Kananos3%; (b) the inventory of Thomas
Smith, who visited Constantinople in 1669, also refers to
the church of Saint Demetrios Xyloportas («Wood-gate»),
giving it the number 1439; (c) in the Patriarchal Register in
1683, where the following is noted: «Saint Demetrios’ in
the parish of Kanavis, in Xyloporta, that is Ayivasari-
kapi»37, and elsewhere.

Until 1729, it appears that the Byzantine church of Saint
Demetrios maintained its original external architectural
form, i.e. with a dome, even after occasional renovations
and interior and exterior improvements. Of course, during
the conflagration in Balata in 1640, the buildings around
Saint Demetrios’ were also reduced to ashes or badly dam-
aged38, though whether and to what extent Saint
Demetrios’ itself was damaged is not clear. In 1729, how-
ever, after a great fire in the same area of Xyloporta, the

historical Byzantine church of Saint Demetrios and ten
other churches were reduced to ashes. Athanasios
Komninos Ypsilandis in «After the Fall» (1453-1789)%, has
this to say about the event: «A mighty blaze without Palata
and within the gate... all eleven churches were burned
down. The aforementioned Manouil Ypsilandis, through
the Commis-sioner, desired that a firman be issued and did
provide him with what was needful, that is, 120 purses. The
firman having been given, the eleven churches were con-
structed from their foundations, with their courtyard walls
and the buildings required for habitation», According to
another source, overtures were made to the Sublime Porte
by the Greeks of the area to acquire the necessary permis-
sion for the reconstruction of the church. As a result, a writ-
ten order (2nd May 1730) was given to Mehmet Rashid, the
cadi of the city, for the reconstruction of Saint Demetrios
Kanavis and all the other churches that had been destroyed
by the fire. It would appear that permission was granted
without delay, since the inducements paid to state func-
tionaries were considerable, and Saint Dimitrios Kanavis
was rebuilt, the costs being met by the Orthodox faithful,
during the first term of Paisios II as Patriarch (1726-1732).
According to an inscription found in the narthex, the inau-
guration took place on 6th June 1730, which indicates that
the reconstruction of the church, at least as regards the
basics, was carried out very quickly, since the old ruined
walls would have had to be demolished first. We should also
bear in mind that permission for reconstruction of church-
es was very hard to come by and always involved a huge out-
lay in inducements. So in order to forestall any unexpected
developments, which could even result in permission being
revoked, any reconstruction and repair work had to be car-
ried out immediately and finished without delay*!. In the
wall of the narthex, there is an interesting inscription#? con-
cerning the reconstruction of Saint Demetrios’. It is dated
June 6, 1730, and states:

FIRE REDUCED ME TO A RELIC

OF A BRILLIANT HOUSE/

WHICH KANAVIS OF RENOWNED LINE/

FORMERLY BUILT TO DEMETRIOS

THE MYRRH-YIELDER/

AND NOW THE DIVINE ZEAL OF THOSE CLOSE BY/

THE FAITHFUL AND OTHERS HAS RAISED FUNDS

TO BUILD ME/

A SIGHT UNWONTED IN YEARS

OF SERVITUDE/

IN THE REIGN OF PATRIARCH LORD PAISIOS/

ANNO DOMINI 1730, 6 JUNE.

Athanasios Komninos Ypsilandis also mentions that
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tou Kavapn®, H ddewa, mdvung, énmg goivetal, ed6On
Fwols raBuotéonon, agpot 1ol o ot Tow edoBnoay
atovg 1Bivovtag Tov Kodrovg dev 1jtay evrataqpodviya,
%o 1) enhnoio tow Ayiov Anproiov tov Koavafin #tiotn-
e ®ou Mk ex Pabpwv pe domdves Ty opHodotwv mi-
otav, Zard my mowtn marpapyic Maiciov B(1726-1732).
Ter eyraivie, oipgove pe ontopévy evidg tou vipyrog
ey, Eyvay otg 6 lovviov 1730, yeyovdg mou delyvel
GTL 1) avorxodGUNo Tou vaou, Tovhdatoy atd paoirdte-
oot anpele, TpaypoTOToUiBNKE 08 GUVTONO Yoovird Oud-
o, agol mponyounEves Bo elyay watedaguobel fe-
patwg o1 makwol gpemwpgvol Tolyol. Tpénel £dd va -
@Bel vTdyn) oL o1 AdELES avoLKodOOEMS EDIBOVTO TNV E-
oYY EXEVI LE peydhn) Ouorohia ®al e TNV ELOPOQG TOA-
Lady yonudrav. Moo modhiym, ooy, ameodntou Tvig
HOTUOTACE WS, TOV Bet WIOPOUOE VoL EYEL 10 ATOTEAECLNL U
HOWLY] KO TNV OVARAON TS ADE LTS, OL AVOLRODOLOELS ®oil
Ol EMOLEVES EMOENE VO YIVOVICL APEGNS KAl VO TEQUOLTI-
Covran ympig xaBuotépnon*l. H eviiagépouoa meoi tg o-
vourodojoems Tov vaou tov Ayiov Anuntolov, eviouyi-
opgvn otov vapbnxa Tov vaou emtypagni?? pe xoovohoyic
6 lowviow 1730, £xeL wg eEnc:

IIYF EKTEDPPOIME AEIWANON AAMITPOY AOMOY /

ONIIEP KANABHY QF TNEPIKAHTOZX 'ENEL /

AHMHTPIQ ITPIN T MYPOBAHTH KTIZE /

TQN FEITONOYNTQN ENGEOZ ZHAOZ AEME /

IIETQN TE AAAGQN ANET'EIPEI AATIANH /

ZENON GEAMA AOYAOZYNH EN XPONOIZ /

TMATPIAPXOYNTOZ TE KY T]AiE([)OY EN ETEI

XP(IET)OY. AYA EN 10YNIQ XT./

O Abavaoog Kopvnvog YymAiaving avagepel emiong
ot o Movouih Yymidvg éhafe and zdbe exnhnoio mou
avarowiobnxre to avakoyouy 08 aunijv mooov twv 120
movyyeiwy mov efge dwoel otov OBwpavs Enftpomo yu
v eEaogahioer o @eppdve tov £31de TRV GdELA TG (voL-
ZODOIOEWS TOU VLo,

O oolopevog, ooy, ofuepov o e TiRMTG Po-
ouuriis Suhdoteyog vadg, otoillopevog oe Eikvoug ®io-
VEC, OV OITOTEREL «KACOUAG COYITEXTOVIUL TV YOOVOV
g Tovpronpatitgs, ELXEL TNV LOTORIKI TOV GvadROWY C-
6 o 17304,

O vaods Tou Ayiov Anunrolov, tahaimmonbeiz oto népa-
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OO TOD ¥OOVOU %ol T (IT0 OELGPOTG %O TTUEKRUIES, U=
xawiobnze ex véou otig 20 Toviiov 1835 pe goovida zow
domdn Ty 0pBodGEwY Popwwy g Tdheng eni [Tatoudo-
you Kovotavriov B'(1834-1835). To yeyovog g avaral-
VIOEMS OVOUPEPETUL OF EVIOL(LOUEVY OTOV vAdpBn®o £mi-
yougy, 1) omola £yeL wg e5ng:

OYTOZ O NAOZ ANAKENIZG@H

LI KONETANTIOY [ATPIAPXOY

1835 IOYAIOY 20.

Z10 0eE10 ®hitog TOU Voo Tov Ayiov Anpntpiou, «Ev 16
e’ Avopam trg @csotoxov v Bhayepvov Ioperanhnoius,
gupioxeTo PeyoL 1o 1960 %al n wropuk Bovpatoupyog €1-
»éva mg Moavayiog tov Bioyepvdy, n omoia eiye peta-
peobel exel PeTd TV TUORAIC TOU RATETTOEYE TV EXKAN-
aic. Tov Bhayeovev?, H ewmdva vt petageodtay (e
BonorevTixy mopmi o evAdfiEie otov ywpo tov Avui-
TUATOS TV NUERQ TNE £00TIS Tov Aydopatog (31 loviiov)
Heil ENEOTPEQPE Tkl OTOV Vad Tov Ayiov Anpntoiov petd
my eopt). And 1o 1960 1) eidva peteqéphn wa Extote
TOQUUEVEL OQLOTLHA TTAEOY 0TIV exxAnoio tov Bhayeovay,
1 oMol ol YEITVIALEL Ue auTiv Tov Ayiov Anunroiou®t,
Mddora oo owyihhadeg Fpdupae tov Hotoudpyor AvBi-
pov ET (mpw) matplooylo cvtol 1845-1848), mov endo-
Bnxe Tov Mdptio Tov 1847, minoogopotpeda én vmijoge
peycihn Sty petall Toy evoortiv tou Ayion Anunroi-
OV %OL TV HEADV TS OUVIEXViag Twv youvapddwy. Ot te-
hevtaion Siexdiotoay THY ®UOIGTTC TOU AVIAONATOS TS
Iavayiog twv Bhayeovov, my onola duwateivoviay o Q-
yov wan oL tov Aylov Anuntplov. Tehnrd, Vortepa and ov-
oxeyn g Efvinig Zuvelevosng, amegaaiob 6T 10 Ayi-
aapee Ut «Etven EVIRGY TOT YEVOUS %TTas %ow OEY 1)
UIOQEL VL VIjXEL OF ZATOLCL XOLVETN T, YL (UTO TOETEL Vet
TaRaUEVEL «EhetBepov nal TAONS NEQURTS EEovoiag avd-
TEQOV Eig cdmve TOV amavtas. Did Tov oromoy autdy opi-
obnue eapemis emttpomy, 1) omoia Ba elye TV evBivi) Tou
Ayidoparog. H ewmdva de g Tavayicg 0o eguikdooeto
WG 70t TRGTEQOV OTOV Vil Tov Ayiov Anpupipion ovpgove
pe T rahandBev zoatotveat’, O vads emozevdobue %o
eEmpaiomxe to 1904, Votepa 0o QYOOI TOWDY ETWOV, [LE
mpwtofouiin Tov Owovpeviwot Hatpudpyov loaxeip 7]
LLE TO GOXVOV EVOLUQEDOV TWV EMTOONWY Kl LE DUTAVES
TOV EVCEHOV TOTHVY KL EVOQITHY TOV Voo, Tov €gpbacay
g 200 yovogg kipeg®. Ty nuépa de g 26mg Oxrmfoiov
TOV 1010V ETOVS, XKUTA TNV ETETELO TAVIYUQT] TOU VOIOU TOU
Avyiov Anuntoiov, LLE THY EVROLEIT THE CVOLOTNANCENS Xl
TOV £EwpUiopon avtol, teréotnre atpraoyag wo Zuvo-
o} Osla Aertovpyla mpoesdpyoviog tov Tatpudpyou
Twaxeip T, Zoy «Exxinowaotzng Ahibewr»+?, duopdtov-
pe peTelEn dhhmv: «Zuviifog v 1 vab ToUT $0000TuTE O
TONAYUHTATOS OIMOVUEVIZOS TATOLAOYNS, MEXOL OF mod



Manouil Ypsilandis received 120 purses from every reno-
vated church, which corresponded to the amount paid to
the Turkish Commissioner to guarantee permission for the
reconstruction of the church®3,

So the church, as it is today, a three-naved basilica with
a wooden roof, supported on wooden pillars (the «classic
structure of the years of Turkish rule»), actually dates back
to the year 173044,

The church of Saint Demectrios, damaged by the passage
of time, by earthquakes and by fires, was renovated once
more on July 20, 1835, in the reign of Patriarch Konstantios
IT (1834-1835), the Orthodox Greeks in Constantinople
again meeting the costs and overseeing the project. An
inscription in the wall of the narthex records:

THIS CHURCH WAS RENOVATED

DURING THE REIGN OF PATRIARCH

KONSTANTIOS

1835 JULY 20.

The historic, wonder-working icon of Our Lady of
Vlahernai was kept in the right nave of the church of Saint
Demetrios, «in the Chapel of the Mother of God of
Vlahernai», until 1960, having been brought there after the
fire that destroyed the church of Vlahernai%, This icon
was carried in procession, with all due devotion, to the site
of the Blessed Spring on the day of the latter’s feast (31st
July) and returned to Saint Demetrios Church after the
celebration. In 1960 the icon reverted to the church of
Vlahernai, which is close to Saint Demetrios’, and has
remained there ever since?®. In an official letter of
Patriarch Anthimos VI (from his first term, 1845-1848),
issued in March 1847, we learn that there was a great dis-
pute between the parishioners of Saint Demetrios’ and the
furriers guild, both groups claiming ownership of the
Blessed Spring of Vlahernai. Finally, after a meeting of the
National Assembly, it was decided that this Blessed Spring
was «the property of the nation», that it therefore did not
belong to any particular community and should remain
«free and superior to all minor authority for ever». For this
purpose a six-member committee was appointed to be
responsible for the Blessed Spring. The icon of Our Lady
was to be kept in the church of Saint Demetrios as of old*7.
The church was repaired and improved in 1904, after three
years of work, on the initiative of Ecumenical Patriarch
loakeim III, and through the tireless efforts of the parish
council. The costs were met by the parishioners and
amounted to 200 gold pounds?. On 26 October of the
same vear, at the annual feast of the church of Saint
Demetrios and on the occasion of its restoration and
improvement, a Patriarchal and Synodal Divine Liturgy
took place, with Toakeim III as chief celebrant. In

Exxdnowcoriny Ahijfewa («Ecclesiastical Truths)¥, we
read, among other things: «It is customary for His All-
Holiness the Ecumenical Patriarch to celebrate in this
church and, indeed. until thirty years ago we kept the
revered tradition that the liturgy was celebrated together
with the venerable metropolitans of the synod, to com-
memorate the Patriarchal and Synodal Divine Liturgies
that took place three hundred and more years ago, when
the church was that of the Patriarchate, at the time when
holy Meletios Pigas of Alexandria was locum tenens and,
after him Matthaios from [oannina. Restoring this holy
custom, His All-Holiness Ecumenical Patriarch loakeim
paid tribute to the former patriarch and hierarchs who
preached the word of salvation from this church and
ordained that from the following Tuesday, 26 October, a
Patriarchal and Synodal Divine Liturgy was to take place in
this historic church». It does not seem that this was repeat-
ed in the years following. It may be that the Patriarch cele-
brated on the day of the feast itself and, perhaps, at
Vespers the evening before.

In the years between the two world wars, Saint
Demetrios” did not function normally, but was used for
other purposes™. According to inscriptions embedded in
the walls, and other information, we learn that the church
was repaired and improved several times in the 20th centu-
ry, such as in 1930, the costs at that time being defrayed by
the Great Benefactor, Alexandros Konstandinidis, in 1946-
7 and in 1960, during the reign of Patriarch Athinagoras I,
when Great Benefactor Konstandinos H. Yeoryiou?! met
the expenses.

Nevertheless, in the last few decades since the 70’s, the
ravages of time and the tribulations visited upon the
Greeks of Constantinople because of the circumstances of
the day have taken their toll, and the church, abandoned
and neglected, has once again begun to show signs of wear
and tear. In the end, it became possible, by divine provi-
dence and the efforts of the Ecumenical Patriarchate, to
secure funds for the cost of renovating and improving the
church of Saint Demetrios Xyloportas. This was achieved,
in the first place, by «twinning» the church with that of
Saint Demetrios Skopos, Serres, in 199452 and thereafter
through the generous contribution of the entrepreneur and
office-holder of the Great Church of Christ, Yerasimos
Vasilo-poulos, who undertook to meet the costs of the rad-
ical renovation of this historic church. In this way, both the
church and the Blessed Spring of Prophet Elijah in the
courtyard were renovated, as was the watchman’s house.
The church was returned to the Orthodox faithful at the
Patriarchal and Synodal Liturgy on 21 May 1995. The chief
celebrant was Ecumenical Patriarch Vartholomaios,
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TOLUHOVTICETIOS OUVETNQETO e’ TV E80g oefaoToyV,
Omwg O OIXOUNEVIRGS MUTOLAQYT|S XOQOOTUTT, UV TOIg O8-
Poaopiog ovvodixoic 2v alth, el AVAapVNoY THv TEG ToL-
%zoolwv xal mhéov etav ywvopévay (1597-1601) ev adte me-
TOLHOYLHAY #Ol CUVOOIKEV AEITOVOYIEY, nath &y “alody die-
TELEL TOTOLOOHIROS GV vade, EXDTRG EmmonTeiag ToJ iE00T
Mehetiov ‘Alesavdpeiog tou Iy wol 1ol pet’ adtou
Martbaiov tod amo Twavvivov. "Ernavopbioy 16 Anopovn-
BEv 1epdy 200¢ O TaVOIITATOZ OIXOVPEVIRGS TOTOLADY NS
7. Twamelp, wal yeoalpwv Ty pvijuny tov 2w 105 8ol
TOUTOV VOLOT ®NOUEAVTWY TéV AOYOV TFg Guoiug ey
TTOV TOTOLOOYMY #otl 2OYLEQEWY, ROBLEDOL &6 TS TOOTE-
%00z Toltg, 26 "Oxtwpplovn, matolayiy ®al cuvodiwiv
Lerrovpylay YEVHOOUEVIV £V Ti) I0TOQWHD TOUT vah», AEV
qaiverar 1 xobepobeioa Morpuoyzng war Zuvodixr
Oeic Astovpyla va emavahigbnxe atov ev Aoym vad ota
emopeva, yoovia. Towg o TMatpidoyns va yopootatotoe
TV NREDT TS UVHUNG Tou aylow ANWToion 1) axopn ®ot
OTOV TOOEOOTLO E0TEPLVO.

Katd my mepiodo petagt tov modtou xat devtépou Ia-
yrooptov [Toképov o vadg tov Ayiov Anunroiov dev hei-
TOUQYNOE ®ovovird, alhd yonopomonibnxe o dhhoug
Tromoic, TOUEoVE [LE EVIOLYLOUEVES OTOV VO ETYOC-
@Ec, oA Hou amo dhieg mAnpogopies, pabaivovpe ot o
voog emoxevdotnre rat eEnpaiobnxe xord tov K audva
waw dhhes gopée, ommg to 1933, pe dandveg tov Meydhou
Evepyérov AheEdvdpov Kovoravvidn, to 1946-1947 xa
10 1960, el Hatpwdpyov Kovotavivoumoieme Abnvoryo-
pou A, pe damdvec tov Meydiov Evepyétov Kovotavri-
vou X. Temoyiow!,

Ev tottoig onig tehevtaieg petd to 1970 dexaetieg o vo-
6¢. £ TS PHORAS TOU YOOVOU AL TV TEQUITETELDY TOU YE-
VOUZ, EVERC TWYV TEQIOTACEWY, EYAUTUAEAEIUIEVOS KOl T
papenueEvog, apyiCer vo mapovardlel won maht delypoto
@hopds #au wavappevoems., TeMuos, 1) eEaopdion e
DUITAVIG YLCL TV CVAXQiVION %o TV EEWOUIoNG Tou vaou
Tov Aylov Anunrolov Evionoptag xatéoty duvari), Belx
TOOVOIZ ®ak e TV (poovtida tov Owovpevizot Tatpuog-
FELOU, ®OT COyds UE Y adeigpomoinon Tov vaou Tovtou
pe tov vao tov Ayiov Anuntplov Zxomou Zeppdv 1O
199452 yo0L OTY) GUYEYELDL JLE TV EVYEVIXY] TROTPORA TOV €-
TyElonpaTion %ot dpyovra Meydhor Opgavotpigou Trg
Meydhng tov Xowotot Exxzinotiog epaoipov Baothomou-
Lov, o omoiog avérafe Ty otovopux dotdvy e plierg
AVOACIVIOEME TOU 10T010U avtou vaou. "Etal, avaxaiyi-
obnray TO00V 0 VOOS ®OL TO EVIOS TOU CUAOYTQOU EUpL-
aropevo Ayiaopc tov IMpogijrov Hot 600y xou 1) %oTol-
wio Tov @ukaxog. O vadg €860 ®ow mdl mpog Aatoeiav
otovg gvoePels opBoddtoug motovg ward v Hoatplapyi-
w1 ®aw Zuvodij Oelce Asrtovpyic ™g 21ng Maiov 1995,
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poeEdpyoviog tov Owovpevizot TTarpidpyov ®.x. Bao-
Bohopaiov, emi tng evrheols matolayicg Tou omolo ava-
AOWioHuay oL TEQLIGETEQOL £% Ty OwCopEviy 0pBodG-
Ewv vamy mg [Tokeme. Metd to meépag g Oelug Agitovp-
yiag o Owovpevirog Iarpudpyng EXave T ATORAAVITT-
o1 dU0 EVIOL(LOUEVOV LOPPaQIVEV Thaxdy Tov BupCovy
10 YEYOVOS, kb »ou g ayafoegyés mpdEels Twv Evoe-
pov motav now gvepyetov. EE avtdv 1) modtn avagépetol
OT0 YEYOVOS TG VORCIVIOEWS ®al 1) deUtepn oty adeh-
pomoinon Twy mpoavagepBEvtwy dto vawv, H emyoagp
OV AVOAPEQETOL OTV EX VEOU CVOXIVION TOU VOWOU, Ou-
viayBelon ams Tov kdylov 1epdoy Tov Owovpevixot TTa-
owapyeiov Mytoomokitg TTépyng Evdyyehov, éxel wg e-
Sijc:

OYTOZ O ITANZEIITOE TOY MYPOBAHTOY NAOZE

ON OYAE IIANTOAETQP XPONOX EZEBAXOH

KAEIEMA AOMQE TQN AIQNQN YIIAPXQN

THN ANAKAINIZIN AYTOY AIIEAEZATO

EITEY ITATPIAPXOYNTOZ TOY BAPBOAOMAIOY

MEPIMNH TE KAL ®PONTIAI [IOAAHL

MHTPOIIOAITOY AAOAIKEIAE IAKQBOY

TEAEZDOPQE AE XOPHTOYNTOXZ TOY APXONTOZX

MEIAAQY THE EKKAHEIAY OPGANOTPODOY

TEPAZIMOY BAZIAOIIOYAOY

EIZ MOAT'HN KAI AYBIZ YTTIO AOMON OABION

MNHMHN AE I[NAAIN AIHNEKH T' EYTNQMONA

EYAOIIOPTA MAIOY KA aenfe’.

O Axthog Mijhhog, oto Tehevtalo Mav evdagepoy Pi-
pito tou pe titho «Kwvotavtivou Ildhe. H evidg tov tet-
yv OpbodoEias, avagepduevog atov vad Tov Aylov An-
prroion tou Kavdpn, yodger xou ta eEijg evolagépovr:
«Zrjpepa, povadinn xal 0o évopitioow 7 Alnatepivy Xou-
gomovhov, Cel 0TV MeQIPoho TS Exanhnaiug, Enavo &md 16
“ETROMKG” TOU YEITOVEVEL PLE EYRUTUAELELUUEVO TAMVHO-
HTLOTO HTIOLO, TO Omoto Zoteyale Tjv aotiwr] ayoh) Zvio-
m6pg ®ai quhoEevoloe 1 opaihijiov Tiv Adehgdtyta
v 'Evwéa Movaivs33,

Avmj elvan 1) ovvropn wotopia evog vaot me Ileing, mov
MO TIS MEQUIETELES TTOV E(E ®ATH TO MEQUONC TOV CULO)-
vy, EECROAOUBEL Vo OTERETOL ®olt Ojuepa GpBlog pall pe
chhovg vooUs ®ol WEUNATE O TOUTOUS TOUS LEQOUS %L
POOTUOLAONS, LOTORIXOUS YICL THY RUPLOGUVY TOTOUS, VI VL
Bupiter svhafird 6n 1o wavdnh g [iotews o tov Té-
voug ouveyiCer va mapapével dopeoto omy II6Ay, pe xé-
vipo 10 Owovpevixs [atpiapyeio, Gmov doguhdcsovtal
£70 cuEiveES avoBeuTa won avahhoiwta to doypata g Op-
Boddsov nuosy Tiotews »at ou wepég [Mupadooeig tov T'e-
VOUg pag, ®oldvTeg Tovg rov yng evoepels oploddEoug
TUOTOVE VL ETCYOUTVOUY it veL ju)y ofifjoel 1o ®avnjhe au-
10 TOTE.



during whose term in office, most of the surviving church-
es of Constantinople have been renovated. After the litur-
gy, the Patriarch unveiled two marble plaques in the wall
which commemorated the event and the generous actions
of the faithful and the benefactors. The first to be men-
tioned was the renovation and the second the «twinning»
of the two churches mentioned above. The inscription for
the new renovation of the church, composed by Metro-
politan Evangelos of Perga, a learned hierarch of the
Patriarchal Throne, reads as follows:

THIS VENERABLE CHURCH OF THE MYRRH-

YIELDER

RESPECTED NOT BY TIME THE RAVAGER

AND YET A GLORY FOREVER

WAS RENOVATED IN THE GOOD REIGN

OF VARTHOLOMAIOS

THROUGH THE GREAT CARE AND

ATTENTION

OF IAKOVOS, METROPOLITAN OF LAODIKEIA

AND THE EFFECTIVE GENEROSITY OF THE GREAT

BEADLE

OF THE CHURCH

YERASIMOS VASILOPOULOS

IN REMEMBRANCE AND GRATITUDE AGAIN

UNDER A BLESSED ROOF

XYLOPORTA 21 MAY 1995,

Akylas Millas, in his latest. very interesting book entitled
«The City of Constantine. Orthodoxy within the Wall» (in
Greek), refers to the church of Saint Demetrios Kanavis
and has this to say: «Today, the only parishioner, Ekaterina
Khrysopoulou, lives in the grounds of the church, above the
“meeting room”, which abuts an abandoned brick building
which used to house the Xyloporta school and was, at the
same time, home to the “Nine Muses” brotherhood»33,

This is a brief history of one of the churches of
Constantinople, which despite the vicissitudes it has

endured over the centuries, continues to stand to this day,
together with other churches and institutions in these
places which are sacred to Byzantium and are a historical
witness to it. They serve to remind us that the lamp of faith
and of the Greek nation has not yet been extinguished in
Constantinople, kept alight as it is by the Ecumenical
Patriarchate, where, for centuries, the dogmas of our
Orthodox faith and holy traditions have been guarded
from adulteration and alteration. It calls upon the
Orthodox faithful all over the world to be on their guard to
ensure that the light never goes out.
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